
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

OCTOBER 5, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

 

     INVOCATION / Pastor Bryant Evans / Eastern Shore Church of Christ  

 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

      

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / September 21, 2015   

 

                                                     Council Work Session Minutes / September 23, 2015  

                                      

                                                     Special Called Council Meeting Minutes / September 28, 2015 

                

PRESENTATION:   Beautification 4
th
 Quarter Awards:       Infirmary Health – Eastern Shore / Joe Stough, CEO 

                                                                                                   Dennis Summerford, VP Facilities & Construction 

 

                                                                                                   Rettig’s Auto Body Shop / Jerry Kiper, General Manager 

 

PROCLAMATIONS:          1.)   National Domestic Violence Awareness Month 

 

                                                2.)  National Breast Cancer Awareness Month 

                                              

                                                3.)  National Fire Prevention Week / October 4-10, 2015 

 

                                                4.)  Dyslexia Awareness Month 

                                                    

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry    

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

Review minutes / September 21
st
  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott  

Review minutes / September 21
st
 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

Review Beautification minutes / August 5
th
   

 

Review Daphne Museum minutes / August 10
th
   

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway  

Review minutes/ September 23
rd

  

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Davis  

Resignation / Jeffrey Ramsland  



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               OCTOBER 5, 2015                                            PAGE   2 

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD - Lake  

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

      

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

                  

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

Review minutes / August 26
th
  

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

          

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

    a.)  Facilities Use Permit / Daphne Art Center / Judged Art Show / October 10, 2015  

 

    b.)  Events Permit / Daphne Art Center / Judged Art Show / October 10, 2015  (Art Scattered throughout downtown) 

           

    c.)   Events Permit / Bayside Academy Charity Challenge / 2 Mile Fun Run / December 5, 2015  

 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-62 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Daphne Park Improvements  

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-63. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I-10 Culvert  and Outfall Repair at D’Olive Creek Flood 

                                                                                    Water Damage / ALDOT Project #ERPR-8980(928) 

  

       ORDINANCES:  

 

      2ND
  READ     

a.)  Ordinance 2015-52. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Lodging Tax Appropriation: Richard Scardamelia Pavilion (Bayfront Park)  

                                                               Flooring 

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-53. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Additional Appropriation of Funds: Emergency Watershed Protection for: 

          Maize Gully (Project #2) 

 

c.)  Ordinance 2015-54. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Establish a New Job Description to the City’s Job Classification Plan: 

          Senior Human Resources Specialist 

 

     1
ST

 READ 
a.) Ordinance 2015-55. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Adopting the Fiscal Year 2016 Operating Budget 

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-56. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Extending the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Authority 

 

               

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

3



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                       

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk;  Jay Ross, City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief;  

David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Kelli Kichler, Finance Director/Treasurer;  Adrienne Jones, Planning 

Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager;  Vickie 

Hinman, HR Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Dorothy Morrison, DRA/Beautification 

Committee; Willie Robison, BZA; Don Ouellette, Environmental Advisory Committee; Tomasina Werner, 

Beautification Committee; Denis Kearney, IDB; Jeffrey Ramsland, IDB; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; David 

Tarwater, Baldwin County Board of Education; Heiko Einfeld, Executive Director of the ES Chamber of 

Commerce; Dr. Meredith Foster; Michael Pierce, Director of the Mobile Port Authority. 

 

Absent:  Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Michael Hoyt, 

Municipal Judge. 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Reverend Gregory Meadows of Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church gave the invocation. 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

September 8, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no corrections the September 8, 2015 council meeting minutes stand approved. 

 

September 14, 2015 Council Work Session Minutes 
There being no corrections the September 14, 2015 council meeting minutes stand approved. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The September 14
th

 minutes are in the packet.  

 

MOTIONS: 

      a.)  To approve authorizing the Mayor to release the $5,012 encumbered funds to Daphne High School to      

            support their broadcasting journalism project and purchase of needed equipment for recording City  

            meetings and other purposes 

 

 

 

 

4



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve authorizing the Mayor to release the $5,012 encumbered 

funds to Daphne High School to support their broadcasting journalism project and purchase of needed 

equipment for recording City meetings and other purposes.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

      b.)  To authorize Mrs. Ashley Campbell to initiate the property donation process and authorize the  

            Mayor to execute required agreements for the donation process 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to authorize Mrs. Ashley Campbell to initiate the property donation 

process and authorize the Mayor to execute required agreements for the donation process.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Financial Report 

 

Treasurers Report / August 2015                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,551,440                  

 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $1,429,579      

 Total Restricted Funds - $7,888,755 

 Total City Funds - $17,440,195  

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.3 months 

compared to the previous year -  3.7  months 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections / July 2015 

$1,222,993.95  was collected for July, 2015: 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $31,877.64          

 Percent change from last year’s collections   +7.4 %  
 

Lodging Tax Collections / July 2015 

$140,897.70  which is up $1,500.33  from July 2014’s collections of $139,397.37.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $ 50,123.04           

 Percentage change YTD from last year’s collections:  + 21.2 % 

 

Councilman Fry will submit the reports to be filed for audit. 

 

 

 

 

5



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Davis 

The minutes for the September 8
th

 meeting are in the packet  The Village Point Foundation made a 

presentation for improvements to the Village Point Park Preserve.  The next meeting will be October 5
th

. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be 3
rd

 Monday of October.    

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The next meeting will be the third Monday of October after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The minutes for the July 6
th

 meeting are in the packet along with the July 8
th

 Beautification minutes and the 

July 13
th

 Daphne Museum minutes.  The next meeting will be October 5
th

.  

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting will be October 1
st
.  

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be Wednesday at 5:30p..m. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be September 28
th

 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be October 8
th

.  There was not a quorum for the last meeting. 

 

    E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The next meeting will be Thursday at 5:00 p.m. 

 

F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The July 8
th

 minutes are in the packet. 

 

  G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be September 30
th

 at 4:30 to finalize the budget.  

 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood reported that last Wednesday the city lost a volunteer firefighter, Darrell Perry. Darrell was 

in the marines and served in various places around the world.  He served well in his years of service for the 

time that he was with the city.  He said Darrell will be remembered with a big smile, and he always wanted 

to continue to serve.  The funeral will be tomorrow at 12:00 noon. 

 

6



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 
Mr. Ross said there are two matters that need to be discussed in Executive Session: the buying of property 

and the good name and character of a person.  Council will need to come back from Executive Session in 

case actions are necessary. 

 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director -  reported Brown Bag by the Bay is Thursday from 11:30 a.m. to 

1:30 p.m. at May Day Park, and also gave the sports schedule. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reminded everyone that the Jubilee Festival is this weekend.  

She said that Ballroom Dance tickets are on sale for October 9
th

.  

 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  

a.)  Events Permit / Daphne High School Homecoming Parade / October 7, 2015 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to approve the Events Permit for Daphne High School 

Homecoming Parade / October 7, 2015.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Jeffery Ramsland – 7910 Creekbank Drive  – read a letter from Mrs. Toni Fassbender, the Chairman of 

the Industrial Development Board. (Letter is attached to these minutes) 

 

Mrs. Frieda Romanchuk – 30615 Laurel Court – read a letter from her husband who could not be present 

for the meeting. (Letter is attached to these minutes) 

 

Mr. David Tarwater – 611 Maxwell Avenue - Baldwin County Board of Education – spoke as a citizen of 

Daphne in favor of the DISC project saying the project will bring the right type of development to Daphne.  

He said as a School Board member he does not see the board taking the property next to the high school. 

 

Ms. Marie Simpson – Daphne – supports the DISC project saying she would like Daphne to get higher 

paying jobs, and would like her son to come back to Daphne to work and be able to support himself. 

 

Dr. Meredith Foster – Principal of Daphne High School – is excited about the DISC project and what it 

will mean for students, and the benefits it will bring for the school. 

 

 

 

 

7



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

Mr. David Hudgins – 26136 Via Del San Franseco – spoke regarding the growth of the city, and if a city 

does nott have growth the city withers.  He is in favor of the DISC project.   

 

Ms. Victoria Phelps – Worchester Drive – made some suggestions on the pre-zoning of the property for the 

DISC project. 

 

Mr. Henry Lawson – 104 Boosketuh – spoke against the DISC project.  He had some questions on the 

funding, and asked what are the plans for the other 40 acres. 

 

Mr. Michael Pierce - 9823 Evanston Street – spoke regarding the DISC project saying that the private sector drives 

these types of projects, and invests to bring these types of projects as this for the future of the children.  Diversity is 

needed in cities.  He asked the council what they support is it retail businesses then say so, and if it is, then the city is in 

trouble.  He said this is a 20-30 year decision.  He said the world is  paying attention to the Eastern Shore area  to see 

what happens to the DISC project. 

 

Mr. Phil Wilbourn   – Chairman of Sehoy Subdivision POA – said that he supports the DISC project, and he is a 

proponent of the land being away from I-10. He said to develop the property on Highway 90 would be way too 

expensive, and the proposed land for the development is flat and would be relatively cheap to develop. 

 

Mr. Bill Scully – Daphne – spoke in favor of the DISC project.  He said that this development could play off all 

businesses especially Austel. 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-58 “Option “B”. . . . . . . . . . . Appoint Joe Davis to the Renaissance Center  

                                                                             Cooperative District Board of Directors 

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-59. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize the  

                                                                                   Mayor to Dispose of Such Property / 

                                         2003 Ford F150 Truck 

 

c.)   Resolution 2015-60. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Bid Award: Maize Gully / Baldwin County   

                                                                                  Construction, Inc. 

  

d.)  Resolution 2015-61. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Authorizing Converting Current City Credit Cards to  

                                                                                  the Commercial Card Program 

                                                                                    

 

 

 

8



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2015-58, 2015-59, 2015-60 and 

2015-61. Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-58 Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

After the City Attorney advised Council that only one Councilman can serve on the Cooperative Board 

Councilman Scott withdrew his motion and Councilman LeJeune withdrew his second. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-59.   Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adopt Resolution 2015-60.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-61.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UANNIMOUSLY 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

          2
ND

  READ  

a.)  Ordinance 2015-46. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Pre-Zone:  Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of 

                                                                of  the Intersection of Champion’s Way and AL Hwy 181 / The Bill’s No. 2, 

                                                                 LLC  

 

b. Ordinance 2015-47. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation:  Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of 

                                                                of  the Intersection of Champion’s Way and AL Hwy 181 / The Bill’s No. 2, 

                                                                 LLC  

 

c.)  Ordinance 2015-51. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Consenting to the Sale by the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne 

                                                           of Certain Surplus Personal Property  

 

 1
ST

 READ 

a.)  Ordinance 2015-52. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Lodging Tax Appropriation: Richard Scardamelia Pavilion (Bayfront Park)  

                                                               Flooring 

 

9



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-53. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Additional Appropriation of Funds: Emergency Watershed Protection for: 

          Maize Gully (Project #2) 

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-54. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Establish a New Job Description to the City’s Job Classification Plan: 

          Senior Human Resources Specialist 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2015-46, 2014-47, 2015-51.  Seconded 

by Councilman LeJeune. 

 MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-46.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell  Nay     LeJeune  Aye 

Lake   Nay     Davis   Aye 

Fry   Nay     Conaway  Nay 

Scott   Aye 

 

MOTION FAILED 

 

Ordinance 2015-47 was pulled from the agenda due to the failure of Ordinance 2015-46 

per letter by owner. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt  Ordinance 2015-51.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

Ordinances 2015-52, 2015-53 and 2015-54 are 1
st
 Read. 

 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Lake said he is supportive of the DISC project if it was in the right place. He said sewers were 

installed on Highway 90 so businesses could come to that area. That was the purpose.  He said he hoped the 

IDB would look at this location.  He wants the city, county and state to follow the Highway 181 access plan. 

 

Councilman Fry said that he agrees with a lot of what has been said tonight, but he feels there needs to be 

better planning.  He said the city is already experiencing growth, and the managing of that growth is on their 

shoulders.  He said they do not have a lot of experience with the PUD zoning.  If this comes back with  

 

10



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

regular zoning he would have a higher comfort level.  He said there were questions about operation and 

financing that have not been unanswered.  He said he did not appreciate the high handed pressure regarding 

this divisive issue, and the way some people have handled it has not been appreciated.  He said that he was 

for extending the current budget so they would have more time to review the budget. 

 

Councilman Scott said that by a one vote margin council has, basically, told the folks that came out tonight, 

those who represent the schools, the congressman, the people that serve on the eight people on the Planning 

Commission, and those that serve on the Industrial Development Board that unanimously voted for this that 

they don’t count, that council knows best.  He has heard people on this council say why isn’t this in the city 

of Daphne, why aren’t those businesses in the City of Daphne, why aren’t those businesses on Highway 13 

not in the City of Daphne, and council just had a chance to annex 75 acres into the city, and he doubts if they 

will ever, ever get the opportunity again.  When you make it difficult to do projects people are not going to 

want to come to your city.  He is disappointed, but he can see both sides of the issue.  He appreciates folks 

coming out and participating in the process.  He said they will get over it and live to fight another day. 

 

Councilman LeJeune said he agrees with what Mr. Scott said, and he appreciates people coming out and 

speaking on both sides.  He said the previous council has set the standard for voting against things coming 

into the city.  The city lost a chance for an interchange to relieve traffic issues, Academy has built a great 

new store in Foley that is thriving they certainly stopped them from coming here and the bowling alley is 

doing a great job in Spanish Fort, they stopped them from coming here.  Council needs to find out what the 

city’s identity is and move forward.  Is it more shopping centers, malls like Renaissance and Jubilee Square, 

where the city owns the parking lot there and none of the buildings?  He said he can understand both sides of 

this issue.  It is a difficult issue.  He had hoped council would have had more foresight to move past some of 

those issues.  He really feels bad for the kids of the school will not have that beacon of what to look for other 

than just low wage retail jobs.  Where they would have seen large office spaces of high end – high paying 

jobs something for which they could strive, and intern to see what some of these different things are.  Money 

from those corporate people, and high end jobs come into the schools.  On a personal level being a small 

business owner within two communities they are inundated with kids coming in asking for money to do 

sports, to do different things for the school.  Every single day there is someone coming in asking for an ad or 

something, and as a small business owner they have to pick and choose and say no to some of the kids, 

whereas, if you had some large corporation that could afford those things, they funnel that money into the 

school right next to them.  You are talking about really improving what the county can’t do.  The county is 

short of money, and he thinks they should really look to the future, and try to do their best for the kids and 

the community. 

 

Councilman Davis thanked Denis Kearney, Jeff Ramsland and Frienda Romanchuk, on behalf of her 

husband Dan, for being at the meeting tonight.  He said that he thought he actually heard from council that 

there would be support for the IDB to  buy land on Highway 90. That land costs 10 times as much, and as the 

engineer said tonight it would even be more than that to make it level enough to do something.  He said 

evidently some of his colleagues did not like the way they approached this project, but as soon as council 

heard of it they made a mockery of justice.  He apologized for not being a good steward, and he handed 

Council President Conaway, the City Clerk and the Mayor a letter to be read which, was his resignation from 

the council.  The City Attorney read the letter of resignation. 

 

 

11



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

The City Attorney asked Councilman Davis for an effective date, and he said immediately. 

 

Councilman Rudicell introduced the new marketing person Cara Wilbourn, and asked citizens to remember 

the Perry family, and Darrell’s service to the city and to his country.  He was doing a good job for the city, 

and everyone should thank him for his service. 

 

Mayor Haygood thanked council for the job they do.  He said nobody said it would be easy.  Council has to 

deal with the hard decisions, and they quickly learn that you cannot please everyone.  As he has discussed 

with many on the council they are not always going to agree on every issue, but at the endo of the day they 

should have a strong foundation of the facts before a decision is made, and everyone should vote their 

conscience, and he believes that occurred this evening.  He regrets that there has been some factual 

misinformation that has clouded the decision, and it makes him question whether or not all are operating on 

the same basis of fact.  There has been a series of meetings, and a number of opportunities to have dialogue.  

In the absence of facts people tend to jump to conclusions or it creates opportunities to distort, and he thinks 

that is unfortunate.  He thinks they owe it to themselves to listen to the citizens to do a better job 

communicating in a more transparent fashion, to have open discussions so that everyone can understand the 

facts.  This is not an indictment or him trying to poke at anyone or this body.  He thinks they need to find a 

better way to operate, and he hopes everyone agrees.  He is not going to beleaguer the point, but he said as a 

slight nuance to what Mr. Pierce had to say what message are they sending?  He is not sure they are sending 

a consistent message.  What message are they sending to the IDB and Planning Commission?  These two 

bodies have been appointed, and serve without compensation.  They serve to make the community better.  

Maybe they need to better scrutinize appointments so they can rely on their recommendations.  What 

message are they sending to the youths?  He apologized to the youth, because it is their future that the 

decision made tonight affects, although it may not have been properly thought through.  It is the youth’s 

opportunity not necessarily his or some of the people who spoke tonight, but is about creating that ambition 

for which youths can strive.  When you create that opportunity it can make a difference in young people’s 

lives.  What message are they sending to the citizens? 

 

Council President Conaway mentioned that there is a Word Session Wednesday at 5:30 p.m. and a Special 

Called Council meeting on Monday, September 28
th

 at 6:30 p.m. to discuss the budget. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to enter into Executive Session to discuss the purchase of real estate and the 

good name and character of a person.  The session will last for 30 minutes.    Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

Jay Ross, City Attorney, certified that the foregoing reason to enter into Executive Session is appropriate according 

to the Alabama Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Conaway  Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

Council entered into Executive Session at 8:15 p.m. 

12



SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
0

 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 8:35 p.m. 

 

No action was taken by council after the Executive Session. 

 

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:35 

P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________  _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk       Council President 

13



14



SEPTEMBER 23 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Ron Scott; Robin 

LeJeune; Joe Davis.  

 

ABSENT:  Randy Fry. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Kevin, Boucher, Adams & Reese; Kelli 

Kichler, Finance Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; David McKelroy, 

Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; James White, Fire Chief; Captain 

Scott Taylor, Police Department; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Margaret Thigpen; Civic Center 

Director; Tonja Young, Library Director. 

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 7:15 p.m. 

 

1.  FY2016 BUDGET 

Council went through the remaining sections of the budget asking questions of Ms. Kichler and Ms. 

Ciancetta.  Sections council considered were: 

 

 Public Works 

Council questioned Mr. Johnson regarding the high over-time especially regarding one employee who 

had a high amount of over-time, and that there was quite a difference in over-time for 2015 and 2016. 

 

Mr. Johnson explained that his department has not had one new employee, and the area to be mowed 

has increased. He said mowing is the biggest expense.  He explained that you have to take into 

consideration the over-time city events generates, and over-time is cheaper than hiring of new 

employees.     

 

Council asked about the $25,000 over-time for one employee, and if there was any way to real that in. 

 

Mr. Johnson said that there is no other leader, and the employee has to come in early to get the 

equipment ready for the day.  There are only two employees that are certified to transport inmates, 

and he is one of the two.  He said that now he knows the numbers for over-time they can track it, and 

every two weeks a report will be generated on how much is spent on over-time and how much is left 

in the budget.  The department is looking for ways to cut back over-time, and he already has several 

ideas.  They will have better data for next year on how much time is  spent on events, those during the 

day and those on weekends. 

 

 Recreation 

Council questioned Mr. McKelroy regarding equipment purchase/lease.  Council suggested using 

interns to help the patrons with use of the equipment. 

 

 

 

15



SEPTEMBER 23 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

 

 Library 

 Transfers 

 Debt Service Fund 

 Special Revenue Fund 

 Capital Projects Fund 

 

 Enterprise Fund 

Council discussed the loss in Solid Waste/Garbage/Recycling.  Mr. Johnson said that is why he is 

asking for a $1.50 increase.  Council asked about fuel cost and use.  Councilman Scott said that he 

will make a motion to amend the budget to include a $1.50 increase in garbage collection.  

Councilman LeJeune said to make sure there is an ordinance amending the garbage ordinance 

regarding the increase. 

 

 Solid Waste 

 Civic Center 

 Bay Front Park 

 

 Contributions 

Council discussed the one exception amendment to the Community Grants ordinance regarding 

giving a higher contribution for Thomas Hospital.  An amendment will need to be made to  the 

budget to reflect the increase.   

 

 New Capital Requests 

Council asked about the cost for the improvements to Fire Station #2, and how far behind are they 

replacing Police vehicles, and could they just order three of the six requested.  Mr. Johnson said there 

is a time constraint regarding the cut-off for ordering the vehicles, and it would be best to order six 

vehicles. 

 

Council asked if any funds have been budgeted for resurfacing.  Mr. Johnson said no.  Councilman 

Scott said they need to take $500,000 out of reserve for resurfacing in FY2016, and stick to the 

priority list for resurfacing. 

 

Ms. Kichler suggested having a budget for emergency repairs so they don’t have to come before 

council, and the Mayor can authorize the repairs. 

 

 New Personnel Requests 

Councilman Rudicell requested information from Chief White regarding the request for one new 

firefighter as to how much will that save on over-time and part-time employee and will this offset 

temps. 

 

 

 

16



SEPTEMBER 23 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e3
 

 

 

 

2. ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY 

No other business to discuss. 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED 

AT 8:30 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes          Tommie Conaway,                                                                 

City Clerk       Council President                           

  

17



SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION 

Councilman Lake gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk;  Kevin Boucher, City Attorney; 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Kelli Kichler Finance 

Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; 

Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee/DRA. 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

3.   FY 2016 OPERATING BUDGET 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, gave a presentation clarifying his budget requests.  (Clarification 

is attached to these minutes). 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-55.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Council discussed amendments to the FY 2015 Budget as follows: 
 

 

Amendment 101 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Lake to add $17,500 to the FY2016 budget for purchase and installation 

of a gazebo at Joe Louis Patrick Park, and to be taken from the Recreation Lodging Tax Fund.  

(Capital Budget)   Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

 

Amendment 102 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to amend the Community Grant for Thomas Hospital Foundation / 

Birthing Center from $5,000 to $30,000 to be taken from the General Fund.   Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to amended the motion to have the contingency before 

appropriating the funds that Thomas Hospital will annex the Birthing Center into the City of 

Daphne.  Councilman Scott and Lake accepted the amendment. 

 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell that extraordinary circumstances have been shown and the City 

Council deems an exception to the terms and conditions of the Community Contribution ordinance. 

Councilman Scott and Lake accepted the amendment. 

 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

VOTE ON ORIGNAL MOTION AS AMENDED 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell  Nay     Scott   Aye    

Lake   Aye     LeJeune  Aye    

Fry   Aye     Conaway  Aye 

 

AYE    Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Conaway   NAY    Rudicell 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Amendment 103 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell  to take the $600,000 appropriation from the Capital Reserve 

Fund for sewers instead of the Lodging Tax Fund.   Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

19



SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e3
 

 

Amendment 104 
 

MOTIONBY Councilman LeJeune to eliminate the $75,000 for the Lobbyist.  Seconded by Councilman 

Rudicell. 

 

After discussion by council Councilman LeJeune withdrew his motion and Councilman Rudicell withdrew 

his second. 
 

 

Amendment 105 

 
MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to add $50,000 to the FY2016 budget for a School Feasibility 

Study.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell  Nay     Scott   Nay 

Lake   Nay     LeJeune  Aye    

Fry   Aye     Conaway  Nay 

 

AYE    Fry, LeJeune     NAY    Rudicell, Lake, Scott, Conaway 

 

MOTION FAILED 
 

 

Amendment 106 
 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to add $25,000 to new park acquisition or boat launch acquisition.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

After discussion by Council Councilman LeJeune withdrew his motion and Councilman Lake withdrew 

his second. 

 

 

Amendment 107 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Scott to increase the garbage collection fee by $1.50 per month.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE   Scott, LeJeune, Conaway     NAY    Rudicell, Lake, Fry     

 

MOTION FAILED 

 

20



SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e4
 

 

Amendment 108 

 
MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to increase the amount for council retreat from $1,500 to $5,000 to be 

taken from the General fund.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

Amendment 109 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to eliminate the Governmental Director position from the Personnel 

Budget, and leave the Executive Assistant position for a savings of $19,459, and transfer it to the Public 

Works over-time budget.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott    NAY      LeJeune 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Amendment 110 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell increase the contribution to the Mobile National Estuary Program from 

$15,000 to $30,000,and to be taken from the Lodging Tax Bay Front Fund instead of the General Fund.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Amendment 111 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Fry to increase the pay for the Municipal Judge and the City Prosecutor by $2,000 

each annually.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

Mayor Haygood brought to the attention of council that the Police Department needed new carpet.  He did 

not realize the how bad it was until the other day.  He said it is not in the budget, but asked council to 

consider adding $30,000 to the budget for the purpose of replacing the carpet. 

 

 

21



SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e5
 

 

Council said it should have been in the budget, that here they are at budget time, and this is given to them 

at the last minute.  No motion was made to include this in the budget. 

 

 

Ordinance 2015-55 with amendments is a 1
st
 Read. 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading or Ordinance 2015-56.  Seconded by 

Councilman Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Ordinance 2015-56 is a 1
st
 Read 

 

 

4.    DECLARE DISTRICT #7 SEAT VACANT 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to declare the District #7 seat vacant, and to approve advertising 

through October 19, 2015.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

3. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 9:35 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                                                           

      
______________________________                                                            

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

                                                                     

        Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

        _________________________________     

             Tommie Conaway, Council President 

22



23



24



 

 

 

CITY OF  

DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

PROCLAMATION 
 

“National Domestic Violence Awareness Month” 

 October 2015 

 
WHEREAS, domestic violence is a serious crime that affects every American, harms our 

communities, weakens the foundation of our community and hurts the ones we love the most; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, one in four women will experience domestic violence during her lifetime; and  

   

WHEREAS, domestic violence is widespread and affects over four million Americans each 

year, and  one in three Americans have witnessed an incident of domestic violence; and 

 

WHEREAS, children that grow up in violent homes are believed to be abused and neglected 

at a rate higher than the national average; and 

 

WHEREAS, only a coordinated community effort will put a stop to this heinous crime; and 

 

WHEREAS, “Domestic Violence Awareness Month” provides an excellent opportunity for 

citizens to learn more about preventing domestic violence, and to show support for the 

numerous organizations and individuals who provide critical advocacy, services and 

assistance to victims; and 

 

WHEREAS, this month we recognize the survivors and victims of abuse whose courage 

inspires us, and to remind them they are not alone. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE,  the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama 

proclaims October 2015 as “National Domestic Violence Awareness Month” and urge the 

citizens of Daphne to work together to eliminate domestic violence from our community. 

 

          

_____________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

     

ATTEST:    

______________________________ 

  Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

25



 

CITY OF  

DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

PROCLAMATION 
 

“National Breast Cancer Awareness Month” 

 October 2015 

 
WHEREAS, Breast Cancer touches the lives of Americans from every background and in every 

community across the Nation; and 

 

WHEREAS, one in eight women will get breast cancer in her lifetime; and 

 

WHEREAS, the National Cancer Institute estimates in the United States more than 1.5 million new 

cases of breast cancer will be diagnosed this year, and every 13 minutes a women will die from breast 

cancer; and 

 

WHEREAS, National Breast Cancer Awareness Month remains dedicated to increasing public 

knowledge about the importance of early detection of breast cancer diagnosis and treatment;  and  

   

WHEREAS, many women still do not utilize mammography at regular intervals even though research 

indicates it is the best available method of detection; and 

 

WHEREAS, taking advantage of early detection methods such as mammography and clinical breast 

exams could help the breast cancer death rate drop by approximately 30%; and 

 

WHEREAS, the American Cancer Society has searched endlessly for a cure through vital research 

and has the mammoth task of educating our community and all Americans of the risks of breast 

cancer.   

 

WHEREAS, during National Breast Cancer Awareness Month we honor those we have lost, lend our 

strength to those who carry on the fight and pledge to educate ourselves and our loved ones about this 

tragic disease. 

 

THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama do hereby proclaim  

 

       October 2015 as “National Breast Cancer Awareness Month”  
 

throughout the city, and urge all women and their families to get the facts about breast cancer, and 

encourage citizens, private businesses and non-profit organizations to join in activities that will 

increase awareness of what Americans can do to prevent breast cancer. 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

     

ATTEST: ________________________________ 

  Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

26



 

CITY OF  

DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

PROCLAMATION 
 

“National Fire Prevention Week” 

 October 4-10, 2015 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all those 

living in and visiting our city; and 

 

WHEREAS, fire is a serious public safety concern both locally and nationally, and homes are 

the locations where people are at the greatest risk from fire; and 

 

WHEREAS, half of the home fire deaths result from fires reported between 11:00 p.m. and 

7:00 a.m. when most people are asleep, and one quarter of home fires were caused by fires 

started in the bedroom; and  

   

WHEREAS, three out of five home fire deaths result from fires in properties with no smoke 

alarms or  with non-working smoke alarms; and 

 

WHEREAS, working smoke alarms cut the risk of dying in home fires by one-half, residents 

who have planned and practiced a home fire escape plan are more prepared and, therefore, 

more likely to survive a fire; and  

 

WHEREAS, Daphne’s firefighters are dedicated to reducing the occurrence of home fires 

and home fire injuries through prevention and protection education; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2015 Fire Prevention Week theme is, “Hear the Beep Where You Sleep 

Month” effectively serves to remind us of the simple actions we can take to remain safe from 

fire during Fire Prevention Week, and all year-round. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama do 

hereby proclaim the week of 

 

“October 4-10, 2015 as Fire Prevention Week” 

 

throughout this city, and urge all the citizens of Daphne to protect and to support the many 

public safety activities and efforts of Daphne’s fire and emergency services.   

    

             

       ______________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

    ATTEST:  

______________________________ 

  Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

27



 

 

CITY OF  

DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

PROCLAMATION 
 

“Dyslexia Awareness Month” 

 October 2015 

 
WHEREAS, Dyslexia is a specific learning disability that is neurobiological in origin and is 

characterized by difficulties in reading and reading comprehension despite intelligence, 

which affects one in five people regardless of race, gender, age or socioeconomic status; and 

 

WHEREAS, Dyslexia is the most common learning disability in children and persists 

throughout life with 10 percent of the  population or one out of every 10 people in the United 

States suffering from dyslexia; and 

 

WHEREAS, a proper diagnosis of dyslexia can identify those who need extra help enabling 

appropriate instruction, and support and facilitate success for those with dyslexia at school 

and in the workplace; and 

 

WHEREAS, proven methods exist, that with the support of parents, teachers and the 

community, can assist readers to improve their fluency and comprehension; and  

 

WHEREAS, children with untreated dyslexia suffer devastating personal consequences as it 

is the primary reason teenagers drop out of school, is a contributing factor to juvenile 

delinquency and can lead to adults unable to achieve at their fullest capacity; and 

   

NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama do 

hereby proclaim  

 

                     October 2015 as “Dyslexia Awareness Month” in the City of Daphne 
 

and encourage all citizens to learn more about Dyslexia, and to offer support to parents, 

educators and individuals affected by Dyslexia. 

 

            

       ______________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

     

ATTEST: 

 

                     ______________________________ 

              Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

28



29



30



31



32



33



CODE ENFORCMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, September 21, 2015 

City Hall Executive Conference Room 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman    Councilwoman Tommie Conway 

Councilman Randy Fry     Councilman John Lake 

Councilman Pat Rudicell     Councilman Robin LeJeune 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 The chairman declared a quorum was present and called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Members Present:  Ron Scott; Pat Rudicell; Randy Fry; Robin LeJeune; Tommie Conaway; John Lake; 

Joe Davis. 

 

Also Present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk / recording secretary; Jay Ross, City Attorney;  Captain Judd 

Beedy, Police Department; Matt Creel, Code Enforcement Officer; Jamie Smith, Revenue Officer; 

Victoria Phelps. 

 

II. APPROVE MINUTES / August 17, 2015 

There were no corrections to the August 17, 2015 minutes and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Councilman Scott carried over a complaint from citizens attending the Public Safety Committee meeting 

regarding multiple families living in a single family home in Lake Forest.  The committee discussed how 

to handle the problem.  

 

The committee will consider this in the October meeting. 

 

 

IV. ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

a.) Discuss:  Resolution 2003-30 / Written Policy for the Use of City Owned Vehicles  

               For Commuting 

 

The committee discussed having the city logo on city vehicles. They feel that the vehicles should be easily 

identified as city vehicles, and felt that all the city logo should be on all city vehicles except for undercover 

operations at the Police Department.    

 

The consensus of the committee was to have the City Attorney to update the ordinance and bring it back to 

the committee next month.            

 

 

 

34



ORDINANCE COMMITTEE                                      JULY 20, 2015 Page 2 

 

 

 

 

 

b.)  Discuss:   Taxi Service 

 

Jamie Smith, the Revenue Officer, gave a handout to the committee with a comparison of what other 

cities have done in regards to an ordinance governing taxi service.  She mentioned that she liked the 

Fairhope ordinance, except that it does not mention background checks or vehicle inspection, and she 

feels this needs to be in the ordinance.  Captain Beedy said he does not like the idea of the Police 

Department inspecting vehicles, because they don’t know anything about the requirements for the 

vehicles, he feels it should bon on Uber to schedule inspections.  They discussed it would be good to get 

in touch with Uber, once the city has an ordinance to let them know what the regulations are because this 

is the only way the drivers will know the rules.  Jamie gave the committee the Fairhope ordinance to 

review. 

 

The committee will consider this further at the October meeting. 

 

c.) Discuss:   Ordinance 2007-37 / Promulgating the Rules and Regulations for Daphne    

                 Parks 

 

The committee discussed using the city boat ramps for commercial use.  

 

The committee discussed making amendments to rule number seven (7) and rule number 13 updating the 

definition of motorized vehicles. They also discussed amending rule number 18 being more specific 

regarding having control of animals, taking care of sanitation of the animal and controlling barking 

animals in the parks.  

 

The City Attorney will amend the ordinance and bring it back to the committee at the next meeting. 

 

              d.)   Discuss:  Ordinance 2008-67 / To Require Hotel Registration and Retention of  

                                     Registration Records 

 

The ordinance requires hotels to retain records for three (3) years and to make them available to police 

officers without a subpoena.  Captain Beedy said now after a court decision the hotel has to have the 

opportunity to appeal to a third neutral party which is the subpoena route.  This mechanism is in place if 

the hotel does not want to give the records the hotel should have the opportunity to appeal to a third party. 

 

Captain Beedy is working with Michael Beron with Jay’s office on this issue.  Jay Ross said that he has 

reached out to the Attorney General regarding this issue. 

 

The City Attorney will look into this matter and report back to the committee at the next meeting. 

 

d.) Discuss:  Proposed Polling Place Ordinance 

Some of the committee feels that two polling places are needed to accommodate the citizens in the east 

side of the city which are District #6 and District #7.  Some favored one polling place at the Civic Center. 

35



ORDINANCE COMMITTEE                                      JULY 20, 2015 Page 3 

 

The committee wanted to look into seeing if citizens could vote at either polling place. 

The consensus of the committee is to wait until the new district lines are determined. 

 

 

 

V. OTHER BUSINESS  

a.)  Update on Handbill Clean Sweep 

 

Matt said that he took Mr. Daugherty from the Press-Register on a tour of the city to see all the handbill 

packets that no one had picked up.  Mr. Daugherty said that he will get more people to do the clean 

sweep.  Matt said that after that meeting there is still a problem. Matt recommended to have an ordinance 

in place to deal with the problem, otherwise, there is no motivation for the Press-Register to do anything 

about the problem.  

 

Matt will get with Jay to see if they can find some common ground with the Press-Register. 

 

 

 

VI. NEXT MEETING /  October 19, 2015 

 

VII. ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

6:20 P.M. 

 

36



Daphne Beautification Meeting 
August 5, 2015 

 
Guests: Barbara Comstock (2) and Laurel Anderson (4) 
 
A) Gator Alley – Waiting on Federal Highway Department; waiting on their new budget to start 
to complete the project. 
*New Gateways – Mayor is still working on it, no progress yet. 
 
B) Breast Cancer Awareness – Meredith is working on the flyer; Custom banners cost $83 each 
(15-20) w/ $25 set up charge – you design it yourself.  Where will they go?  Wood cut outs at 
city buildings. 
 
C) Treasurer’s Report - $4,153.41 balance.   
Voted to help the Daphne Museum with their landscape/ building redo projects by using ap-
prox. $1,200 to put in header curbing to separate the grass from the rocks, get 6 /7 Light Lav-
ender Crape Myrtles to go along the fence line;  get a dozen or so 18” x 18’ pavers to create an 
entrance to the front door; get the front and side doors painted red, the hand rail and spindles 
painted dark green, trim the bushes at the front and get a new hose to enhance the property. 
The Christmas Poinsettias are $400 each (Motion by Dana, seconded by Selena to spend the 
remaining balance to purchase the lighted poisettias – All in favor) ……..We order several……
Denise has ordered Christmas ornaments for the City Hall Main Lobby tree for the next several 
years to have a stock pile….there will be a 5 year rotation. 
 
D) Top Ten List      

 Malfunction Junction…..10 years 

 Master plan for all Gateways - 43 months 

 I-10/181 still needs massive attention -  this is a hands on challenge ...weeds pulled close to 
the fence and concrete walls...months  

 Patriots Point could use some dead/dying bush removal with new coming in……. the whole 
parking lots need an Up- Do………Veteran’s Day 60 is only day off  

 Centennial Park …...pave south parking lot, add mulch, the rubber kind for the small chil-
dren’s area, hand rails for small children shaped like dinosaurs [ Dorothy’s Plan] the col-
ored table add so much and are a great addition to this parks….Marjorie needs painters in 
Oct/Nov…Village Point does not want their tables painted 

 Erosion near CVS in the middle of 98, near Civic Center - Do we need to call ALDOT; this 
dates back to when ALDOT “Fixed” our Roads……  

 
E) PW Report   

 Art Gallery had requested skylight; the roof structures does not work with that idea; track 
lighting was approved. 

 It has been a busy summer - N. Main Street done, except for some striping 

 Windsor Entrance needs work 

 Santa Rosa has been paved 

 New Round-a Bout ready for school opening. 

 Information: Bayfront water line is on Moe’s side of the road…… 

 ALDOT is looking at a double diamond Road design for 181 in 2018/19ALDOT 

 Rolling Hills is finished 

 We have a $5,000 TAP Grant- Multi use on CR13 by the school 

 Open Bid for Village Point - Sept 15th for the BoardWalk 

 New park in Lake Forest will be called Daphne Central Park; will have Disc Golf 

 America Recycles is Nov 17…….. 

 There are 85 tables to paint - There is a $1,000 Power Grant for 13 and Well Road, could 
add 22 trees….plant in Jan/Feb….in a straight line ……[Oh No how about a curve]…. 

 

Committee Members 

 

Dorothy Morrison, Chair 

Selena Vaughn 

Tomasina Werner 

Dana Sawyer 

Rebecca Trosclair 

Victoria Phelps 

 
 

 

 

City Liaisons 
 

Richard Johnson 

Dwayne Coley 

Marjorie Bellue 

Denise Penry 

Michele Hanson 

Samantha Coppels 

 

37



 F - More Flags have been ordered……we need some for new Round-about for November……. 
  
G - DRA  is so pleased with the bike racks……..people don’t seem to know what to do with them 
perhaps we need an old bike attach…….DRA plans photo op when weather cools down….. 
  
H - Project Bloom is still waiting for approved brochure to interest people in donating to the Flower 
Fund…….needs the Mayor’s final approval….. 
 
I - Progress is being made on the Pine Lodge ….team of men have been there on most Sat. morn-
ings cleaning up the area inside and out… a Grant has been applied for to help with the $10,000 
cost of a new roof……the inside can’t be fixed without a new roof…… 
 
J - Arbor Day Tree…..we reviewed the list of selections…… 
   
K -Keep American Beautiful… there  is a meeting in near Jackson, Mississippi on Oct 21 and 22…if 
you are interested please let me or Michelle know…the annual meeting is in Orlando in February. 
… 
 
L - Beautification Awards will be given for District 7 
 
M - The Mayor was not available for the meeting…… 
   
N - Next Meeting Oct 7 2015 at the Mayor’s Conference Room………. 

38



DAPHNE MUSEUM MINUTES 

AUGUST 10, 2015 

 

ATTENDEES:   Mickey Boykin, Lucy Cunningham, Emily Hammond, Arva Brown, Jeanne Nelson, Camilla 

Butler, Al Guarisco, Lee Swetman, Helen Baroco, Ken Balme, Candice Bishop, Rachel Burt, Stephanie 

Middleton, and Mildred Foster 

CALL TO ORDER:   The meeting was called to order by President, Ken Balme, followed by recitation of 

the Pledge of Allegiance. 

MINUTES:    The minutes of the July 14, 2015 meeting were approved.  

VOLUNTEER ASSIGNMENTS/SCHEDULES:     August has a 5th Saturday (the 29th) and a 5th Sunday (the 

30th).  Arva volunteered for Saturday, the 29th, and Al volunteered for Sunday, the 30th.   

TREASURER’S REPORT:   The treasurer’s report for period 6-30-15 through 7-31-15 showed a beginning 

balance of $4,313.49 with credits totaling $43.00 and debits totaling $84.93 for an ending balance of 

$4,271.56.  Petty cash:  $46.39. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 Telephone:    Mickey reported she had emailed all volunteers, but failed to call Doris.  Al said 

he had called her and she was doing well.  

 Exhibits/Events:   The exhibit of Olde Towne Daphne Businesses of Yesteryear is progressing.  

Ken mentioned that he had inherited some antique crocheted and cross-stitched pieces from 

his grandmother and mentioned that a possible exhibit could be made showcasing handwork 

such as tatting, crocheting, embroidery, knitting, and cross stitch.  All agreed.  Everyone 

should bring any of this type handwork to the next meeting.  Discussed having someone to 

demonstrate some of these crafts.    

 Publicity:   Mickey announced that a friend of hers had visited the museum and took a couple 

of photos while there, which he posted on Facebook.  She remarked that this probably 

generated more publicity than any newspaper articles could have done.  

 Cemetery:  No report. 

 Special Tours:   No report. 

 Archives:   Rachel has figured out how to print a hard copy of the acquisition records from the 

computer so that we will have a hard copy to view without having to log on to the computer. 

UNFINISHED/OLD BUSINESS 

 WiFi:   The Mayor has advised Ken that the City would set up a DSL line in the museum. 

 Daphne Normal School Records:   No report. 

 Impact 100 Grant:  No report.    

 Planning Calendar:    Reviewed activities.   The Halloween activity will be held on Friday, 

October 30, from 7 – 9 p.m.  Harriet Outlaw will be asked to tell ghost stories.  Will attempt to 

get a paranormal investigative group for the event. 

 Presentation for Senior Center:   No report. 

 National Endowment for the Humanities (NEH) Grants:   Ken will keep an eye open for 

opportunities. 

39



 Building Improvements:   Ken remarked that he had received an email from Dorothy 

Morrison stating that the approximate cost of planned improvements would be about 

$1,000.00.  He mentioned several of the proposed improvements.  He then led a rousing Hip!  

Hip!  Hooray! For the Beautification Committee. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 Proposed Book Signing:   The museum will sponsor a book signing on Saturday, August 22, for  

Harriet Outlaw’s new book, “Haunted Baldwin County, Alabama.”  Light refreshments will be 

served.   If the museum elects to sell her books, she will give us a free book for every three 

we sell. 

 May Day Event:   The celebration of May Day and ways to accomplish this was discussed.  A 

May Day parade was suggested, and everyone agreed that this was a great idea.  The event 

should take place on May 1st when May Day is celebrated around the world.  A May Day 

Queen could be elected or selected; other communities could be invited to take part.  We 

would need a theme, and a parade permit would be required.   Al stated that if we were 

serious, we needed to request a parade permit as soon as possible, as only a limited number 

of such permits are granted per year.  Ken said that he would get paperwork to City Hall.    

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 Rachel suggested flying a flag adjacent to the street near the museum sign whenever the 

museum is open.  This will allow passers-by to know that the museum was open without 

having to drive into the parking lot or walk to the door to see the sign on the door.   She 

stated the cost would be reasonable.  Al moved to proceed with the purchase; Emily 

seconded; motion carried.  Rachel will be responsible for the purchasing of the flag and 

flagpole and will submit a bill to the Treasurer following purchase. 

 The next regular meeting will be Monday, September 14, at 10:00 a.m. 

 Mickey announced that a Board Meeting will follow this meeting. 

ADJOURNMENT:    There being no further business the meeting was adjourned. 

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

       Mickey Boykin, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

      2 

40



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

September 23 , 2015 
 
 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
Members Present: Casey Zito, Dorothy Morrison, Ken Balme, Debbie Strahley, 
Dayna Oldham 
 
Also Present: Melissa Wilt (Recording Secretary) 
 
Chairman Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:38 p.m. 
 
1. Public Participation 
 
No Public Participation  
 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Motion: to approve the minutes from the August 26, 2015 meeting as written.  
Moved by Dorothy Morrison, Second by Debbie Strahley.   

Carried unanimously. 

 
3. Treasurer’s Report 
 
Chairman Zito reviewed the Treasurer’s report, stating DRA funds currently 
stood at $173,736.95.    
 

Motion: to approve the September 23, 2015 Treasurer’s Report as written.  
Moved by Debbie Strahley, Second by Dorothy Morrison.   

Carried unanimously. 

 
4. Bicycle Racks 
 
Committee agreed on October 17th at 9am for the bicycle racks unveiling event at 
Centennial Park. Committee discussed needing plaques at sites. In the meantime 
Dayna will create a sign and Debbie will laminate to place at parks so residents 
know what they are. Ken will be in charge of publicity. Committee agreed to keep 
event small; invite Mayor, Council, local bicycle groups and downtown 
businesses. Dorothy mentioned creating a write up for Southern Living.  
 

Motion by Dorothy Morrison for the Downtown Redevelopment Authority to 
purchase bicycles and locks to place at racks spending no more than $100. 
Seconded by Debbie Strahley. 

Carried unanimously. 

41



 
5. Christmas Lighting Contest 
 
Committee discussed Ken putting together flyer/invite for downtown businesses 
Christmas lighting contest to be approved at next DRA meeting and sent out to 
business the beginning of November. Committee does not want to conflict with 
October’s breast cancer pink decorating contest.  
 
6.  Daphne Art Center Mini Grant Application 
 
Daphne Art Center submitted a grant for signage for the new Daphne’s Farmer’s 
Market. Chairman Zito mentioned reviewing number of grants awarded to 
organizations to ensure consistency and not favoring one over others. Committee 
discussed doing a year-end review and reviewing at mini grant policy.  
 

Motion by Dorothy Morrison approve Daphne Art Center mini-grant as 
written and allocate funding in amount of $382 + tax for Farmer’s Market 
Signage  Seconded by Dayna Oldham. 

Carried unanimously. 

 
7.  Other Business Deemed Necessary 
 
Chairman Zito mentioned the website designer is no longer working on website. 
She is reassessing and will give update next meeting.  
 
Committee discussed being more involved in City business and committees to 
know what is approved in downtown district.  
 
Chairman Zito discussed the need to create format for monitoring committee 
member terms and reappointments based on set policies. Melissa will get the 
dates of appointment for members and Committee will decipher staggered terms 
and expiration dates.   
 
 
With no other business to consider, the meeting was adjourned at 
6:45 p.m.  
 
Next Meeting: October 28th at 5:30pm 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION 2015-62 

Daphne Park Improvements 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that there is a public need for more sheltered 

gathering places in the municipal park system; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be in the best interest of public health, safety and the general 

welfare of its citizens that gazebos be placed at May Day Park, Park City Park and Joe Louis 

Patrick Park. 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA that the Council President is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

all documents related to the purchase of gazebos at May Day Park, Park City Park and Joe Louis 

Patrick Park. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ______ day of ____________, 2015. 

 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

53



CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION 2015-63 

I-10 Culvert and Outfall Repair at D’Olive Creek 

Flood Water Damage 

Alabama Department of Transportation Project #ERPR-8980(928) 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama (hereinafter at times referred to as City) is 

desirous of having certain improvements made on I-10 within the City Limits of Daphne, in 

accordance with plans prepared by the Alabama Department of Transportation and designated 

as Project Number ERPR-8980(928), I-10 Culvert and Outfall Repair at D'Olive  Creek in 

Baldwin County. 

 

WHEREAS, The Alabama Department of Transportation is now or may later be 

desirous of receiving Federal Aid for improvement of said highway; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Federal Highway Administration, an agency of the United States of 

America, will not participate in any funding for the construction of said project until and 

unless the City of Daphne will agree to certain requirements of the Federal Highway 

Administration. The City of Daphne for the purpose of complying with requirements of the 

Federal Highway Administration in regard to its funding of improvements of the type and kind 

in this agreement provided for does hereby pass and adopts the following resolution. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Daphne that the plans of said project 

including alignment, profile, grades, typical sections and paving layouts as submitted to this City 

and which are now on file in the office of the City Clerk are hereby approved and that the 

location of said project as staked out by the Alabama Department of Transportation and as 

shown by said plans referred to are hereby approved and the Alabama Department of 

Transportation, in cooperation with the Federal Highway Administration, is hereby authorized to 

proceed with the grading, draining, paving, and otherwise improving and construction of said 

project in accordance with said plans. 

The City by and through its Council hereby grants to the Alabama  Department of 

Transportation  the full use of and access to the dedicated widths of any existing streets for the 

construction of said project and hereby agrees to permit and allow the Alabama Department of 

Transportation  to close and barricade the said project and intersecting streets for as long as 

necessary while the said project is being graded, drained, paved, and otherwise improved, and 

hereby agrees that the use of any street or highway for parking within an interchange area will 

not at any time be permitted. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City, that for and in consideration of the 

Alabama Department of Transportation  in cooperation with the Federal Highway 

Administration, constructing said highway and routing traffic along the same through the City 

over said project, such City hereby agrees with the Alabama Department of Transportation  and 

for the benefit of the Federal Highway Administration, that on the above mentioned project the 

City will not in the future permit encroachments upon the right of way; nor will it pass any 

ordinances or laws fixing a speed limit contrary to those limits provided for in Title 32, 

Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended, and other laws of Alabama; nor will it permit 54



other than parallel parking in areas where parking is permitted; nor will it allow the placing of 

any informational,  regulatory, or warning signs, signals, median crossover, curb and pavement 

or other markings, and traffic signals without written approval of the Alabama  Department of 

Transportation  and the Federal Highway Administration, of the location, form and character 

of such installations.  The traffic control devices and signs installed during construction, and 

those installed after completion of this project shall be in accordance with the latest edition 

of the national Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and accepted standards 

adopted by the Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and by the 

Federal Highway Administration.  The City further agrees that subsequent traffic control 

devices deemed necessary by it in keeping with applicable statutes, rules and regulations 

to promote the sage an efficient utilization of the highway under the authority of Ti tle 32, 

chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, and all other applicable laws of Alabama, shall be 

subject to and must have the approval of the Alabama Department of Transportation of the 

State of Alabama and of the Federal Highway Administration, prior to instal lation and the 

City further agrees that it will enforce traffic and control the same under the provisions of 

Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, and other applicable laws of Alabama.  

 

It is understood and agreed that no changes in this Resolution or Agreement shall in 

the future be made without having obtained the prior approval of the Federal Highway 

Administration. 

 

THIS RESOLUTION PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ______ day of 

____________, 2015. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________    __________________________ 

City Clerk: Rebecca A. Hayes    Mayor: Dane Haygood 

 

 I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of Daphne do hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution duly and lawfully adopted by the 

Council of the foregoing City at its regular meeting held on the _________ day of 

______________, 2015, which resolution is on file in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

 Given under my hand and the official seal of such City this _____ day of 

__________, 2015. 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        City Clerk: Rebecca A. Hayes 

 

 

55



ORDINANCE 2015-52  
 

Lodging Tax Appropriation 
Richard Scardamelia Pavilion (Bayfront) Flooring 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lodging Tax funds may be used for the purchase, development, and 
maintenance of waterfront property; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that that the flooring in the Richard Scardamelia 
Pavilion kitchen and bathroom areas needs to be replaced; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an additional Lodging Tax 
appropriation in the amount of $4,755 to replace flooring in kitchen and bathrooms in the 
Richard Scardamelia Pavilion. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2015. 
         
 

                                                                       
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
           
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

56



57



58



ORDINANCE 2015-53  
 

Additional Appropriation of Funds for Emergency Watershed Protection for: Mazie’s 
Gully (Project #2) 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, watersheds and their drainage systems located 
within the City of Daphne sustained severe damage and require emergency repairs in order to 
prevent further impacts to the City's watersheds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has made application with the NRCS (Natural Resources 
Conservation Service) through their Emergency Watershed Protection (EWP) program for 75% 
reimbursement of expenses incurred for such private watershed emergency repairs as 
described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Five (5) EWP Projects were selected by NRCS for funding with the City of 
Daphne as the “Sponsor”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems these private projects key to the recovery 
efforts associated with this rain event and the repair of these private property watershed 
issues is necessary to preserve the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget was amended by Ordinance 2015-20 to include an 
appropriation from the General Fund in the amount of $67,392.25 for the estimated City 
match for the Five (5) EWP Projects (City’s  Match for Mazie’s Gully - $31,714 / NRCS - 
$105,713)). 

3. Bids have been received and total project cost  of 262,157.40 has increased from the 

estimated $126,856) requiring additional matching funds in the amount of $124,731 for 

the Mazie’s Gully project. 
4. The City will serve solely as EWP Project Sponsor and this is not a Public Works 

Project, the City will assume no short or long-term maintenance/repair responsibility for 
the work performed, all future maintenance/repair will be the responsibility of the private 
property owner. 

5. The Environmental Program Manager/Public Works Director or the Mayor is authorized 
to coordinate application with the NRCS for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign 
and execute all documents associated with the described projects. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this _____ 
day of _______________, 2015. 
 
              
Attest:                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

59



60



ORDINANCE 2015-54 
 

An Ordinance to Establish a New Job Description to the City’s Job 
Classification Plan:  Senior Human Resources Specialist 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the personnel needs in the Human 
Resources Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is a need for the creation of a Senior Human Resources 
Specialist position; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Archer Company did prepare a job description for such position 
and recommended the position be classified as a Grade 18. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the position of Senior Human Resources Specialist is hereby 
created in the Human Resources and such position shall be placed at a Grade 18 
in the Job Classification Schedule. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this ______ day of __________________, 2015. 
 
 
      
      _________________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

61



62



63



64



  

 
ORDINANCE 2015-55 

 
ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 OPERATING BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS,  the Mayor of the City of Daphne has submitted to the City Council an operating 

budget for  Fiscal  Year  2016  which  begins  October  1,  2015  and  ends  September  30,  

2016  (the "FY16 
Operating Budget"); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered such proposed operating 
budget; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  believes  that  the  attached  proposed  operating  budget  is  

a  viable spending plan for the City during the next fiscal year; 
 
WHEREAS, the City's procedures require the adoption of the budget by 
Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS,   if the amounts budgeted for departmental operating items or purposes are not 

required to be utilized for such items or purposes, then upon written approval by the Mayor 

or the Finance Director, these amounts may be expended for other departmental items or 

purposes, provided that the total amount of the adopted operating budget is not exceeded; 

and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Mayor is authorized to approve all applications for grants during the fiscal 

year with the  understanding  that  grant  awards  requiring  an  additional  appropriations  will  

be  presented  to Council for approval. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

that the FY16 “Operating” Budget in which the general  fund  revenues  exceed  

appropriations  in  the  amount  of  $935,046 (All Funds - $1,910,111) as attached hereto and 

made a part hereof; 
 
Approved and adopted on this the              day of                        , 
2015. 

 
 
 
 

        ______________________________ 
        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 
Rebecca A Hayes, City Clerk 

65



 
ORDINANCE 2015-56 

 
 

An Ordinance Extending Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Authority 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, Fiscal Year 2016 will begin October 1, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2016 budget will not be approved and adopted by 
October 1, 2015 by the Daphne City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to extend the authority of the Fiscal Year 2015 
budget in order to continue essential departmental operations pending the 
approval and adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Daphne, Alabama, that departmental operations shall continue under the 
authority of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget until such time as the Fiscal Year 2016 
budget is adopted but not to extend past January 1, 2016. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne this 
_____ day of ____________, 2015. 
 
                
   
            
      ________________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

66


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Mionutes - September 21
	Joes Resignation
	Council Work Session Minutes - 9-23-15
	Council Minutes - September 28 - Sp Called - Budget
	Beautification Award Certificate
	Proclamation - Domestic Violence Awareness Month 2015
	Proclamation - BREAST CANCER AWARENESS 2015
	Proclamation - FIRE PREVENTION WEEK 2015
	Proclamation - Dyslexia Awareness Month - October 2015
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	Beautification Minutes
	Museum minutes - August 2015
	DRA Minutes 09.23.2015
	IDB - Jeff Ramsland Resignation
	UTILITY BOARD MINUTES
	Events Permits - 10-05-15 Daphne Art Center
	Events Permit - BaysideCharity2Mile2015
	2015-62 - RES - Authorize Council President to Sign Contract for Gazebos
	2015-63 - RES - ALDOT - D'Olive Creek Repair
	2015-52 - ORD - Lodging Tax Appropriation - Bayfront Pavilion Flooring
	Backup to 2015-52  - ORD
	2015-53 - ORD - NRCS EWP Sites-Mazies Gully-Addl Appropriation
	Backup to 2015-53 - ORD
	2015-54 - ORD - Senior HR Specialist postion
	Backup to 2015-54 - ORD
	2015-55 - 2016 Budget Adoption
	2015-56 -  Continuing Budget Ord Council Packet



